

# **INDIA – MALAYSIA**

## **Bilateral Relations in the 21<sup>st</sup> Century**

**Editors**

**Dr. I. Parvin Banu**

**Dr. R. Sivaramakrishnan**



**Associate Editors**

**Mr. P. Keerthivasan**

**Mrs. S. Shajitha Banu**



# **India – Malaysia Bilateral Relations in the 21<sup>st</sup> Century**

**First Edition**

## **Chief Editors**

**Dr. I. Parvin Banu  
Dr. R. Sivaramakrishnan**

## **Associate Editors**

**P. Keerthivasan  
S. Shajitha Banu**

## **Sponsored by**



## **Published by**

### **CiiT Publications**

#156, 3<sup>rd</sup> Floor, Kalidas Road, Ramnagar,  
Coimbatore – 641009, Tamil Nadu, India.  
Phone: 0422 – 4377821, Mobile: 9965618001  
[www.ciitresearch.org](http://www.ciitresearch.org)

All Rights Reserved.

Original English Language Edition 2025 © Copyright by **CiiT Publications**, a unit of Coimbatore Institute of Information Technology.

This book may not be duplicated in anyway without the express written consent of the publisher, except in the form of brief excerpts or quotations for the purpose of review. The information contained herein is for the personal use of the reader and may not be incorporated in any commercial programs, other books, database, or any kind of software without written consent of the publisher. Making copies of this book or any portion thereof for any purpose other than your own is a violation of copyright laws.

This edition has been published by **CiiT Publications**, a unit of Coimbatore Institute of Information Technology, Coimbatore.

**Limits of Liability/Disclaimer of Warranty:** The author and publisher have used their effort in preparing this India–Malaysia Bilateral Relations in the 21<sup>st</sup> Century book and author makes no representation or warranties with respect to accuracy or completeness of the contents of this book, and specifically disclaims any implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose. There are no warranties which extend beyond the descriptions contained in this paragraph. No warranty may be created or extended by sales representatives or written sales materials. Neither CiiT nor author shall be liable for any loss of profit or any other commercial damage, including but limited to special, incidental, consequential, or other damages.

**Trademarks:** All brand names and product names used in this book are trademarks, registered trademarks, or trade names of their respective holders.

**ISBN 978-93-6126-546-4**

This book is printed in 70 gsm papers.

Printed in India by Mahasagar Technologies.

**Price: 700/-**

**CiiT Publications,**

#156, 3<sup>rd</sup> Floor, Kalidas Road, Ramnagar,

Coimbatore – 641009, Tamil Nadu, India.

Phone: 0422 – 4377821, Mobile: 9965618001

[www.ciiresearch.org](http://www.ciiresearch.org)

49	STRATEGIC AND SECURITY COOPERATION DEFENSE AND MARITIME SECURITY Dr. A. Ramya, MadhanNath. P	270
50	SMART CITIES AND INNOVATION - DRIVEN PARTNERSHIP Dr. P. Anitha, Dinesh Balaji. M and Akilan. M	275
51	INFRASTRUCTURE AND THE DIGITAL ECONOMY: CATALYSTS FOR ENHANCED INDIA–MALAYSIA ECONOMIC RELATIONS IN THE 21ST CENTURY Dr. P. Jayanthi, M. Swathika, M. Vaitheeswari	281
52	FROM ROADS TO NETWORKS: INFRASTRUCTURE AND THE RISE OF INDIA’S DIGITAL ECONOMY Dr. S. Poongodi, S. Abithanjali	286
53	TRADE AND INVESTMENT OPPORTUNITIES - INDIA - MALAYSIA BILATERAL RELATIONS IN THE 21ST CENTURY Dr. B. Devipriya	290
54	BRIDGING BORDERS: INDO-MALAYSIAN COLLABORATION IN HIGHER EDUCATION AND RESEARCH Dr. C. Pramila, Dr. Sangeetha. R, Jenifer. V	295
55	AN IMPACT OF TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS IN INTERNET BANKING Dr. L. Kannan	301
56	INDIA AND MALAYSIA: CULTURAL AND EDUCATIONAL EXCHANGE Dr. P. Gomathi Devi	307
57	INDIA–MALAYSIA COOPERATION IN THE DIGITAL AGE: FOSTERING STRATEGIC INNOVATION AND AI FUTURES J. Gokulapriya, N. Ganapathi Ram	314
58	COUNTER-TERRORISM AND CYBER SECURITY COLLABORATION Rajagopalan. S, M. Rajaboopathi, S. Sabariragavan	320



## CHAPTER – 52

### FROM ROADS TO NETWORKS: INFRASTRUCTURE AND THE RISE OF INDIA'S DIGITAL ECONOMY

**\*Dr. S. Poongodi, \*\*S. Abithanjali**

\*Assistant Professor, \*\*II M.COM (CA), PG Department of Commerce-CA,  
Nallamuthu Gounder Mahalingam College, Pollachi, Tamil Nadu, India,  
\*poongodimuruganantham@gmail.com, \*\*abithanjalisenthilvel@gmail.com

**Abstract---**India's rapid digital transformation in the 21st century has been underpinned by ambitious infrastructure development. From expanding broadband access to building smart cities and strengthening data networks, India's infrastructure growth has catalyzed the rise of a robust digital economy. This article explores the critical linkages between physical and digital infrastructure, the role of government initiatives such as Digital India and BharatNet, and the broader socioeconomic impacts of infrastructure development on digital inclusion, innovation, and economic growth.

**Keywords---**Infrastructure Development-Digital Economy-Digital Infrastructure-Challenges and Opportunities.

#### 1. Introduction

The digital economy is reshaping the contours of global commerce and public service delivery. In India, this transformation is closely tied to infrastructure development—both physical and digital. Infrastructure serves as the backbone for economic activity, enabling connectivity, mobility, and access to services. As India aspires to become a \$5 trillion economy, the convergence of infrastructure development and digital technology becomes a key driver of inclusive growth. This convergence not only enhances efficiency and transparency in governance but also empowers businesses, startups, and individuals to participate more actively in the economy. Digital platforms such as UPI, Aadhaar, and BharatNet have expanded financial inclusion and brought essential services to remote corners of the country. Simultaneously, largescale infrastructure initiatives like PM Gati Shakti and Bharatmala are improving logistics, connectivity, and urban development, creating a solid foundation for digital expansion. Together, these efforts are accelerating India's transition into a digitally enabled, innovation-driven economy that is competitive on the global stage.

### 2. Infrastructure as an Enabler of Digital Transformation

Infrastructure—comprising roads, electricity, telecom, and internet connectivity—lays the foundation for digital innovation. According to the World Bank (2020), countries with better infrastructure witness faster digital adoption. In India, telecom infrastructure expansion, especially in rural areas, has led to increased Smartphone penetration and access to digital services. Projects such as BharatNet aim to connect over 250,000 gram panchayats with highspeed internet, enabling services like e-governance, telemedicine, and online education. Simultaneously, urban infrastructure projects under the Smart Cities Mission are leveraging IoT, GIS, and digital surveillance to improve civic services.

#### Key Government Initiatives and Policy Reforms

The Indian government has prioritized infrastructure in its policy frameworks:

- **Digital India Mission (2015):** Aimed at transforming India into a digitally empowered society and knowledge economy by enhancing internet access, promoting e-governance, and improving digital literacy (Ministry of Electronics & IT, 2020).
- **BharatNet Project:** One of the world's largest rural broadband projects, BharatNet seeks to connect over 250,000 Gram Panchayats through high-speed fiber-optic networks (Telecom Regulatory Authority of India [TRAI], 2021).
- **National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP):** With an outlay of over ₹100 lakh crore, NIP integrates physical and digital infrastructure to stimulate economic growth and employment (Ministry of Finance, 2021).
- **Gati Shakti Yojana:** A digital platform for integrated planning and implementation of infrastructure projects across ministries, ensuring timely and cost-effective execution (Press Information Bureau, 2022).
- **Unified Payments Interface (UPI):** India's real-time payment system has seen exponential growth and has positioned India as a leader in financial technology (Reserve Bank of India [RBI], 2023).

### 3. Digital Infrastructure: Accelerating Innovation and Inclusion

India's digital infrastructure has become a key enabler of innovation across sectors:

- **E-commerce and Logistics:** Companies like Flipkart and Amazon rely on data networks, warehouses, and last-mile delivery systems.

- **Startups and Digital Services:** India is the third-largest startup ecosystem globally, driven by cloud infrastructure, incubators, and venture capital.
- **Digital Health and Education:** Initiatives like eSanjeevani (telemedicine) and DIKSHA (online education) underscore the role of digital tools in public service delivery.
- **Smart Cities:** Over 100 smart cities are being developed with integrated ICT infrastructure for efficient governance, sustainability, and quality of life.

### 4. Challenges and Opportunities

While progress is notable, disparities in infrastructure access persist between urban and rural India. Issues such as digital divide, slow internet speeds in remote areas, and lack of digital literacy hinder inclusive growth. Furthermore, data security, privacy regulations, and high capital requirements for infrastructure projects present significant policy challenges. However, opportunities abound. With the rollout of 5G, increasing investment in data centers and the adoption of AI and IoT, India is poised to deepen its digital economy. Public-private partnerships and foreign direct investment will be crucial to bridge infrastructure gaps and spur innovation.

### 5. Conclusion

India's journey towards a robust digital economy is deeply intertwined with the development of its physical and digital infrastructure. Initiatives like Digital India, BharatNet, UPI, and PM Gati Shakti have laid a strong foundation for inclusive growth, innovation, and improved public service delivery. However, to fully realize the potential of a trillion-dollar digital economy, India must address persistent challenges such as the digital divide, infrastructure disparities, and cybersecurity concerns. With sustained investment, strategic policymaking, and collaborative efforts between the public and private sectors, India is well-positioned to lead in the global digital landscape.

### REFERENCES

Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology. (2020). Digital India programme. Government of India. <https://www.digitalindia.gov.in/>

Press Information Bureau. (2023). BharatNet project update. Government of India. <https://pib.gov.in>

World Bank. (2020). World development report 2021: Data for better lives. <https://www.worldbank.org/en/publication/wdr2021>

Telecom Regulatory Authority of India. (2023). Annual report 2022-23. <https://www.trai.gov.in> Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade. (2022). Startup India action plan.

<https://www.startupindia.gov.in>

McKinsey Global Institute. (2019). Digital India: Technology to transform a connected nation. <https://www.mckinsey.com>

NITI Aayog. (2021). Strategy for New India @ 75. <https://www.niti.gov.in> Bottom of Form